
COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE – NOVEMBER 7, 2005              

AMALFI COURT, WOODBRIDGE

Recommendation

The Commissioner of Engineering and Public Works recommends: 

1. That winter road maintenance on Amalfi Court remain the responsibility of the Condominium 
Corporation; and, 

2. That municipal waste management collection services continue to be provided in accordance 
with Section 15 (e) (ii) of the site plan agreement, and curbside collection services not be 
provided within this development. 

Economic Impact

The costs to upgrade the municipal services would have an impact on the Capital Budget.  In 
order for these municipal services to be brought up as close to possible, to the current municipal 
standards, these costs are estimated to be approximately $75,000.00.  Engineering Services staff 
have identified the following work as being required: 

 The installation of subdrains under the curb-and-gutters 
 The installation of new curb-and-gutters 
 The installation of a new hydrant set 

These costs do not include any changes to bring the sewerage system up to municipal standards. 

The maintenance, repair and ultimate replacement of the municipal infrastructure within the 
development is the responsibility of the Condominium Corporation and therefore had no impact 
on future Operating budgets.  The necessary resources have not been allocated and approved in 
the current budget. 

Purpose

To report on the issues raised by the Amalfi Court residents as directed by Council. 

Background - Analysis and Options

At its meeting on June 15, 2005 (Item 48, Report 39 of the Committee of the Whole) Council 
directed: 

“That staff be directed to report on the issues raised respecting the 7.5 meter roadway 
including the provisions of the agreement signed at the time of development and the cost 
of an additional person on snow and waste removal vehicles.” 

Amalfi Court is a 7.5 meter wide private thoroughfare constructed under the terms of the 
Development Agreement, DA 99-006 (see Attachment No. 2).  The development is a private 
Condominium Corporation within the Regional Municipality of York under the Condominium Act.  
The City still holds a municipal services letter of credit with respect to this development in the 
amount of $60,000.00. 

The Site Plan Agreement stipulates the following in Sect. 15: 

 e (i), “All snow removal and other maintenance services shall be the responsibility of the 
Owner/Condominium Corporation”. 



e) (ii), “Garbage shall be picked up by the City provided a common garbage area is 
designated on the site in a vicinity near the entrance to the development.  The exact 
location of the common garbage area shall be determined by the Public Works 
Department, Solid Waste Management Division”. 

      g), “Snow storage shall be included on site”.  

h), “On street parking shall not be permitted on the 7.5m road  and purchasers shall be 
advised by the inclusion of a warning clause to this effect in all purchase and sale 
agreements”. 

     i), “The road allowance shall remain as a private road”.  

Engineering staff have conducted site inspections to determine if the municipal services within the 
boundaries of the development have been constructed in accordance with City of Vaughan 
Engineering Department Standards.  Staff provide the following comments: 

Operations and Maintenance Issues:

There is no turning circle or hammerhead at the west limit of the road.  Consequently, 
snowplows and garbage trucks would be forced to back into or out of the development, 
creating an unsafe situation.  In accordance with the conditions of the site plan agreement, 
waste and blue box materials are currently collected at a common location by the City’s 
contractors at the curb on Martin Grove Road. The estimated additional cost for door-to-door 
collection would be approximately $4,000 for 2006.  This cost represents the cost to provide 
an additional staff person to assist the drivers in reversing in/out of the development. These 
costs will increase in subsequent years with the full integration of organics collection.

 The narrow roadway would require smaller equipment for snow clearing and regular removal 
of snow from the site. This is because streetscaping features, private walkways, narrow lots 
and private ownership to the curb have eliminated the opportunity to use the standard sized 
snow ploughing equipment, and has resulted in no on-site snow storage.  The cost to provide 
municipal winter road maintenance services to this location using smaller vehicles would be 
approximately $9,000 per winter season.   

 An easement in favour of the City would be required across the lots to access the storm and 
sanitary sewer systems.  Easements would also be required to permit City access to the 
water shut off valves that are situated behind the curb.  The costs associated with 
establishing easements are undetermined at this time and involve legal and registry issues. 

 Utilities may or may not be designed and constructed in accordance with City Standards.  
The streetlight posts are leaning, and would require straightening.  Luminaires would require 
ongoing City maintenance. 

Engineering Design Issues:

 The road has been constructed with barrier curb-and-gutter at a nonstandard width of 7.37m, 
curb-to-curb; the minimum City standard road width with parking on one side is 8.0m.  The 
road has no City Standard sub-drains and no boulevards.  

 There is no defined road allowance within the development.  There is insufficient room to 
establish a minimum standard road allowance of 17.5 metres. 

 The average boulevard width to the base of the steps to the homes is 1.6 metres on each 
side of the road pavement.  Widening the existing pavement to the 8 metres required to 
provide for parking would reduce the boulevards by a total of 0.63 metres.   

 Because Amalfi Court is private property, there was no requirement that the Engineering 
Department inspect road and municipal infrastructure construction.  The City has not received 
certification from the Owner’s Consultant as to the structural composition of the road, 
therefore, staff is unable to determine compliance with City standards at this time. 

 An additional fire hydrant would need to be installed in order to meet current City Design 
Criteria for hydrant spacing.  



 The existing Martin Grove Road pavement configuration presently accomodates the 
northbound left turn lane into the Weston Produce Plaza only.  Road geometrics do not 
provide sufficient pavement width for a left turn vehicle lane for Amalfi Court.  As well, a left 
turn lane is not warranted based on anticipated low volumes and may also impose 
operational conflicts with the nearby Weston Produce Plaza entrance.     

 The sanitary and storm sewerage, water and electrical system may not be built to municipal 
standards, requiring costly changes to current maintenance procedures and practices. 

Emergency Services Issues:

 As stated in the Site Plan agreement, there is no on-street parking allowed.  There would be 
insufficient room for vehicles to access driveways with parked vehicles on the street.  Six 
metres of clear roadway width is required for Fire and Rescue Services. Appropriate “No 
Parking – Fire Route” signage is required.  Further EMS access could be impaired with on-
street parking and lack of an adequate turnaround. 

While it may be feasible to upgrade some of the deficiencies to City Standards (eg: new 
subdrains, additional hydrant) at an estimated cost of $75,000.00, it is not possible to upgrade the 
other municipal services infrastructure, ie: watermain, sanitary and storm sewers, etc. to current 
City Standards. 

Relationship to Vaughan Vision 2007

This report is consistent with the priorities established by Council. 

Conclusion

Based on staff’s review, it is recommended that the City of Vaughan not provide municipal 
services i.e. waste collection or road maintenance, within the Amalfi Court development.  Waste 
collection services will continue to be provided in accordance with the Site Plan Agreement. 

Attachments

1. Location Map 
2. Site Plan Agreement 

Report Prepared by

Bill Gould, C.Tech., Senior Engineering Assistant, ext. 3112 
Tom Ungar, P. Eng., Design Engineer, ext. 3110 
Rob Meek, C.E.T., Manager of Environmental and Technical Services, ext 6100 

Respectfully submitted, 

Bill Robinson, P. Eng.,     Gary P. Carroll, P. Eng., 
Commissioner of Engineering and Public Works  Director of Engineering Services 
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